The Cavitt House

by

Paul P. Van Ri per

March, 1995
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Owners

Cavitt purchased the city block on which the house stands for
$1,000 in January 1875. 2 Tradition has it that he brought his new
bride, Mary Mitchell Cavitt, into the newly constru cted house during the
next October. However, the county assessor's recor ds show the assessed
value of the property as rising from $1,000 to $4,0 00in1881.  ° Thereare
no original house plans extant nor other records to show building date. The
best estimate is that the house could have been bui It as early as 1875 and

as late as 1879 or 1880.

The Cavitts came to Texas from Virginia via Tenness ee, settling
in Wheelock, Texas. Wiliam R. Cavitt, known most o f his life as "Major”
Cavitt, was born in Wheelock on July 4, 1849. 4 Hewas a graduate of the
University of Virginia, a lawyer, and county attorn ey from 1878 to 1880 and
again from 1882 to 1884. He represented the county in the state legis-
lature for two terms in the 1880s. Appointed to the Board of Directors of
Texas A&M University by Gov. L.S. Ross in 1883, Cav itt served until IB96.
His wife was a niece of Col. Harvey Mitchell, often referred to as the
“Father of Brazos Country.” There were six childre n. Family names and
dates are as follows: W.R. (1849-1924), Mary his wife (1854-1914), W.
Horace (1876-1926), Ethel (1878-1977), Howard (1881 -1913), Fred (1885-
1950), and the twins Esther (1891-1958) and Edith (1891-19 78). The family
affiliated early with the First Presbyterian Church . W.R. was the second
superintendent of the Sunday School; Fred was a dea con and elder; and the

2 See ExhibitB . Thisis Block 16 of the Philips Addition as shown

onthe platin vol. M, p. 253 of the Brazos County Deed Records.

% See Brazos County Assessor's Abstract Book, 1879-18 85, Philips Addition,

pp. 264-65.

4 See Ellen B. Cavitt, Some Tracings of Cavett-Cavitt Family History, 1725-
1965, Waco, Texas, 1965, privately published, p. 100.

®> Henry 0. Dethloff, A Centennial History of Texas A& M University, 2vols.
(College Station, TX: Texas A&M University Press, 1 975) vol.1,p. 121 and
vol. Il, pp, 612-14. Cavitt became president of the board in 1886.
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sisters all served terms as historian for the Women
the 1950s and 1960s the Cauvitt sisters donated more
for the building of a new church and outbuildings.
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the city of Bryan had helped the society purchase the property, the

western half of the block (lot 3 resubdivision) was given to the city for
what is now known as The Heritage Park. Lot2 att he south end of the
eastem half was sold to a local dentist, Dr. Russe Il Bradley, who shortly
moved a turn of the century Queen Anne structure th ere as his own
residence.
OnMay 14 , 1982, lot 1 of the resubdivision, including the hou se, was
sold to Prof. and Mrs. Peter M. Mcintyre. 19 Prof. MclIntyre has been a
member of the Physics department at Texas A&M Unive rsity, well known for
his association with the Supercollider Project and the very recent
discovery of the smallest atomic particle. They com menced to renovate the

property, which was in a bad state of repair.

The Mcintyres sold the property to Prof. and Mrs. Paul P. Van Riper
on Sept. 2, 1986, who continue to own and live in t he home. ** Dr. Van Riper
Is Professor Emeritus of Political Science and form er head of the
department at Texas A&M University. He and his wif e were among the
founding members of the Brazos Heritage Society and he is a former
president. He has been a member of the Brazos Coun ty Historical Commission
since 1976. The Van Ripers continued and have larg ely completed the
renovation of the home, at least back to its 1920s form. Since the early
1980s the house has regularly been on historical an d other homes tours and
Is considered a centerpiece of the Bryan East Side Historical District.
the county deed records, a copy of which is attache d as Exhibit B-2 :

10 Seevol. 520 , p. 317 of the county deed records.

11 See vol. 912, p. 13 of the county deed records.



Structural History

The basic and original house style is that of a lat
century ltalianate villa, unusual in its three-bric
and central hall walls, supporting the interior bea
1931 with two Bryan senior citizens, both then in t
confirm that the Cavitts undertook to simplify and
house around 1920, so that it looked more Neo-Class
done by removing much of the Italianate gingerbread
exterior brick, replacing wood porches with brick v
slabs, and installing three inch oak flooring throu
house. A reenforced concrete basement with a trap d
under the kitchen in the early 1950s, probably to s
shelter.

The Mcintyres remodeled the upstairs bathroom, repl
badly damaged main door, repaired some of the brick
repaint the interior.

The Van Ripers completed a full renovation in 1986-
repaired and repainted the stuccoed walls and exter
replaced four badly deteriorated columns and a one
and removed an outside stairs coming down to the re
stairs not having been original to the house. The
foundations were strengthened throughout by support
foundations paralleling the brick on the interior.
sheet-rocking of the walls, begun by the Cavitts, w
the interior completely repainted in suitable Victo

large downstairs closet was added in the library, a

12 Interview with the Hanover sisters, Mrs. James H. B
Mrs. Henry Wicks, Sept. 23, 1981.
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stairway to the attic (there having been only a ste ep ladder).

The home having always been a family residence, it has never been
cut up, made into apartments, or structurally alter ed in any
significant way except for the stuccoing and removal of considerabl e
gingerbread. The Cavitt house is of particular his torical importance
to the city of Bryan for it is the city's only Ital ianate structure
and it represents the earliest group of substantial structures built
here. It is also interesting topographically, for t he house occupies
the highest point of land for ten miles around and the view from the

top is exceptional.



Architectural Description

The description here is taken from that prepared by

representing the Texas State Historical Commission,
1976 nomination for the National Register of Histor
house is a two-story stuccoed brick masonry structu
exterior walls. Including the kitchen basement, the

square feet of interior floor space, divided into 1

The house consists of three elements, a two-story r

facade, a two story secondary block located immedia
block, and a one story kitchen ell located on the w
secondary block. The eastern facade of the house e
massing and large fenestration typical of the Itali

is divided vertically in an A, B, C, C

thirds of the facade contains a deeply inset double
which frame entrances on both floors, flanked by tw
north side. Three pillars on each level support the
very austere with simple mitred cyma recta moulded
pillars themselves are square wooden columns. The s
balustrade, however, is composed of slim machine tu
The A-section of the facade contains a wide rectang
first floor with 2/2 light double hung sash windows
ornamentation or cornice other than the metal rain
runoff from its small wood shingled hipped roof. Ab
2/2 light double hung sash windows set within a sin
stilted segmental arch. An identical bay window and

combination is located on the north side of the hou

13- See floor plans in Exhibits C andD.
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The main entrance consists of panelled double doors

rectangular glass pane with a round headed two ligh
single vertical mullion. The second floor gallery e
door with a single pane arched transom. The first a
entrances on the west side of the house are similar

The inset double galleries on the west side of the
by three chamfered square wooden columns on each le
columns have simple mitred cyma recta moulded caps
floor columns are more elaborate with bolder cyma r
trefoliated brackets. The balustrade is composed of
balusters. The elaboration of the second floor is t
Italianate style and is interpreted in the courthou
details. In the early 20th century, a half turn st
crude wooden posts, was built at the southwest end
been removed.

The kitchen ell is connected to the western galler
single story gallery consisting of a shed roof supp
columns with simple mitred and beveled caps and bas
unlike the remainder of the Cavitt house, has doubl
windows. The rectangular ell has a fireplace and ch
The chimney is plastered brick and rises only sligh
ridge pole which runs east and west, A breezeway on
the two-story secondary block, but has been enclose
wall on its north aide and a wood and glass frame w
both walls containing doors, A small brick concrete
steel handrails was added in the early 20th century
right angle to the kitchen ell's north wall. Simil
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The Cavitt house has a subdued wooden frieze with r

rectalinear panels in alternating sequence. There i
the metal rain gutters. The two-story blocks have w
roofs whose ridge poles intersect at a right angle,
walk serves to visually link the two separate roof
*T* is located above the ridge pole of the eastern
has a simple slat balustrade. The floor of the capt
metal, as are the floors of the two second floor po
There are a few other interesting features. The li
of the front door as one enters), which the Cavitts
never finished during the 1920 renovation and used
left much as the Cawvitts left it so that the constr
Two of the three iron tie-rods spanning the buildin
be seen in the ceiling of this room. The ceilings
only seven to eight feet high. Above them are metal
tied into the roof originally, to provide running w
to Bryan until about 1900. Two rooms, one up and o
old original pine floors. The ceilings are twelve f
up; all the room ceilings are of wood. There are t
and five fireplaces. There are forty windows with f
and two up. The present furniture is more than half
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aised discs and
S no cornice other than
ood shingled hipped
A *T* shaped captain's
elements. The head of the
block. The captain's walk
ain's walk is soldered
rches.
brary (to the left
, for reasons unknown,
as a storeroom, has been
uction is easily visible.
g from east to west can
of the two bathrooms are
-lined, tarred cisterns
ater, which did not come
ne down, still have the
eet down and 11 feet
hree working chimneys
ive exterior doors down
family. Most is

about 1700 to Art Deco.



There is an old garden in the rear, mainly for flow
the original flower beds, marked by brick borders,
visible. The garden fence is wrought iron set in st
arched stone entrance. Nearby is a stone and brick
The metal and stonework here date from 1940, though
itself long antedates that. The two outbuildings w

built in the 1930s or 1940s.

The following photographs are attached as further e
1) Exhibit E, photo front early I1880s
2) Exhibit F, photo from the early 1920s
5) Exhibits Q, H, 1 and J, current photos of four e

sides 4) Exhibits K, L, and M, showing interior sce

Editor’'s Note:

If you wish to see any available appendices attache
this narrative, please visit the Carnegie Center of
Brazos Valley History, often referred to as the
“Carnegie Library,” at 111 South Main St., Bryan, T
Ask to see the Van Riper Collection.
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